
THE HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

Boston Borough Council East Lindsey District 
Council

City of Lincoln Council Lincolnshire County 
Council

North Kesteven District 
Council

South Holland District 
Council

South Kesteven District 
Council

West Lindsey District 
Council

Direct Dialling: 01522 552104

E-Mail: katrina.cope@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Democratic Services
Lincolnshire County Council

County Offices
Newland

Lincoln  LN1 1YL

A Meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire will be held on 
Wednesday, 20 February 2019 at 10.00 am in Committee Room One, County 

Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL 

M E M B E R S   O F   T H E   C O M M I T T E E

County Councillors: C S Macey (Chairman), Mrs K Cook, M T Fido, R J Kendrick, C Matthews, 
R A Renshaw, R H Trollope-Bellew and R Wootten

District Councillors: P Gleeson (Boston Borough Council), C L Burke (City of Lincoln Council), 
Mrs P F Watson (East Lindsey District Council), T Boston (North Kesteven District Council), 

C J T H Brewis (South Holland District Council (Vice-Chairman)), Mrs R Kaberry-Brown (South 
Kesteven District Council) and P Howitt-Cowan (West Lindsey District Council)

Healthwatch Lincolnshire: Dr B Wookey

AGENDA

Item Title Pages

1 Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members 

2 Declarations of Members' Interest 

3 Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
meeting held on 23 January 2019 

3 - 14

4 Chairman's Announcements 15 - 18

5 Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership: 
Engagement and the NHS Long Term Plan 
(To receive a report from John Turner, Senior Responsible 
Officer, Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP), which invites the Committee to consider the 
STP's plans for engagement with local communities and partners)

19 - 20

Public Document Pack



Item Title Pages

6 Non-Emergency Patient Transport 
(To receive a report from Thames Ambulance Service Limited 
(TASL), which updates the Committee on the Non-Emergency 
Patient Transport Service.  Representatives from TASL, will be in 
attendance for this item)

To Follow

7 Grantham Accident and Emergency Department - Referral to 
the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care 
(To receive a report from Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, 
which invites  the Committee to decide the next steps in relation 
to the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire's January 2018 
referral of the Grantham and District Hospital's overnight closure 
of Accident and Emergency Department to the Secretary of State 
for Health and Social Care)

21 - 36

8 Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - Work 
Programme 
(To receive a report from Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, 
which invites the Committee to consider and comment on its work 
programme)

37 - 44

Debbie Barnes OBE
Head of Paid Service
12 February 2019



1

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR 
LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR C S MACEY (CHAIRMAN)

Lincolnshire County Council

Councillors Mrs K Cook, M T Fido, R J Kendrick, C Matthews, R A Renshaw and 
R Wootten.

Lincolnshire District Councils

Councillors P Gleeson (Boston Borough Council), C L Burke (City of Lincoln Council), 
Mrs P F Watson (East Lindsey District Council), T Boston (North Kesteven District 
Council), C J T H Brewis (South Holland District Council (Vice-Chairman)) and 
Mrs R Kaberry-Brown (South Kesteven District Council).

Healthwatch Lincolnshire

Dr B Wookey.

Also in attendance

Dr Kakoli Choudhury (Consultant in Public Health Medicine), Katrina Cope (Senior 
Democratic Services Officer), Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), Tim Fowler 
(Director of Commissioning and Contracting, Lincolnshire West CCG), Dr Neill 
Hepburn (Medical Director, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust), Sarah-Jane 
Mills (Chief Operating Officer, Lincolnshire West CCG), Tracy Pilcher (Chief Nurse, 
Lincolnshire East CCG), Michelle Rhodes (Director of Nursing, United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust) and Jan Sobieraj (Chief Executive, United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust).

County Councillor Dr M E Thompson (Executive Support Councillor for NHS Liaison 
and Community Engagement) attended the meeting as an observer.

68    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R H Trollope-Bellew and P 
Howitt-Cowan (West Lindsey District Council).  

An apology for absence was also received from Councillor Mrs S Woolley (Executive 
Councillor for NHS Liaison and Community Engagement).

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

69    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTEREST

Councillor Mrs P F Watson advised she was currently a patient of United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust.

70    MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR 
LINCOLNSHIRE MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2018

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire meeting 
held on 12 December 2018 be agreed and signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record.

71    CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Further to the Chairman's announcements circulated with the agenda, the Chairman 
brought to the Committee's attention the Supplementary Chairman's announcements 
circulated at the meeting.

The Supplementary Chairman's announcements made reference to:

 Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust – Care Quality Commission 
Rating; and

 Rural Health Care – A Rapid Review of the Impact of Rurality on the Costs of 
Delivering Health Care.

RESOLVED

That the Chairman's Announcements presented as part of the agenda on 
pages 15 to 20; and the supplementary announcements circulated at the 
meeting be noted. 

72    UNITED LINCOLNSHIRE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - UPDATE ON CARE 
QUALITY COMMISSION INSPECTION

The Chairman welcomed to the meeting:-

 Jan Sobieraj, Chief Executive, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust;
 Dr Neill Hepburn, Medical Director, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust; 

and
 Michelle Rhodes, Director of Nursing, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS 

Trust.

In guiding the Committee through the report, representatives from ULHT provided the 
Committee with an update on the progress made with the response to the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) inspection.  It was noted that details for each of the work 
programmes were shown in Appendix A.  It was noted further that the Trust was 

Page 4



3
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

making positive progress against the work programme with some areas making some 
significant improvements; these specific areas included were Safety Culture; 
Governance and The Deteriorating Patient.

It was noted further that the CQC inspection report had identified a number of 'must 
do's' and 'should do's' all of which had been mapped to individual work programmes.  
The Committee noted that good progress was being made on all of these. 

It was highlighted that some challenges had been identified, details of which were 
contained on page 23 of the report presented.

The Committee was advised that due to the fragility of the service, the performance 
of Pilgrim Hospital Emergency Department would continue to be monitored daily by 
ULHT's Executive Directors and Senior Leadership Team.

The Committee were taken through each of the Quality and Safety Improvement Plan 
– Work Programmes as detailed in Appendix A to the report.  The Committee noted 
that Appendix B provided key milestones reported at the weekly Quality and Safety 
Implementation Group, fortnightly at the Quality and Safety Improvement Board and 
monthly to the 2021 Programme Board, and the Quality Governance Assurance 
Committee and Trust Board.

During discussion, the Committee raised the following issues:-

 The positives gained from learning and sharing information and dialogue with 
other health trusts;

 The problems encountered from having a long term shortage of specialist 
staff.  It was reported that it was difficult embedding learning and culture, when 
staff were only present for short periods of time.  The Committee noted that 
there was a vigorous assessment process in place when an incident occurred.  
It was noted further that induction and follow up processes were being 
embedded to reduce or prevent mistakes;

 How staff were trained to check for the 'basic things'.  It was reported that 
when nurses were trained 'basic things' formed an integral part of the training, 
for example making sure that the correct patient was being treated through 
"positive patient identification".  Further clarification was sought concerning a 
"never event".  The Committee was advised that there were lots of near 
misses; and reassurance was given that lessons were learnt from near 
misses.  It was noted that staff were encouraged to come forward early in a 
situation, so that the matter could be dealt with promptly.  It was highlighted 
that this was being embedded as part of the learning culture;

 Resource concerns – It was highlighted that out of all the programmes, Pilgrim 
Hospital, Boston ED was the biggest risk, due to the number of temporary 
staff.  It was highlighted further that £100,000 had been spent on agency 
nurses from just one agency.  The Committee noted that the Trust was trying 
to integrate the temporary staff into the team, by getting the same agency 
nurses when possible, this then made for safer working, ensuring the staff 
were inducted, and were able to access further training.  It was highlighted that 
temporary staff were costly, and that as a result the deficit figure was 

Page 5



4
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

increasing.  The Committee noted that staff recruitment was a national issue.  
It was noted that the Trust was in the process of up-skilling existing staff, to 
reach the required skill mix; and that more was being done to get the required 
skill mix across the whole of the hospital;

 Page 25 – QS04 – Pilgrim ED – One member highlighted that it was good to 
see that the department wished to consistently achieved 95% plus 4hr target, 
however, it was felt that this was optimistic target, based on the identified 
challenges highlighted in paragraph 1.3 of the report.  The Committee was 
advised that action was being taken and that over the last two years, a senior 
management leadership programme had helped the Trust attain a level of 
management skills; that the introduction of the staff charter had provided clear 
expectations; and that contracts now clearly defined personal responsibilities.  
The Committee was advised that all staff were encouraged to advise 
management of issues that were not working, or needed looking at further.  
The Committee noted further that the Trust was also bringing people in from 
other well performing ED Departments to share their knowledge and expertise.  
So far, this exercise had proven to be very helpful.  Clarification was given that 
the QS04 on page 25 was the target the Trust was aiming to achieve;

 Ambulance waiting times – The Committee was advised that waiting times had 
improved over the summer, but there was more that could be done;

 Staff recruitment – The Committee was advised that some additional staff had 
been recruited with the necessary skill set; 

 Some members welcomed the inclusion of the Improvement Plan;
 Page 58 – Emergency Department at Pilgrim Hospital – Some concern was 

expressed that the milestone columns within the document had not contained 
any deadline dates.  It was felt that as a public document, dates should have 
been included.  The Committee was advised that the document was just a 
progress report which provided information of what was being done;

 A question was raised concerning the cancellation of leave for some staff 
working on the Stroke Ward at Pilgrim Hospital, Boston.  The Committee was 
advised that this was not an issue any of the Trust representatives had 
knowledge of, and that this matter would be looked into outside of the meeting;

 A question was asked whether the Trust was aware how extensive the next 
CQC inspection would be in the spring of 2019.  The Committee was advised 
that there was an assumption that there was the likelihood that it would be 
core services plus a review;

 How the CQC rating had affected recruitment and retention of staff; and how 
maintaining staff morale was being addressed.  The Committee was advised 
that the Trust being in special measures had affected staff recruitment and 
staff morale; and that the situation was not likely to improve until the outcomes 
of the Lincolnshire Sustainability Transformation Plan had been agreed.  It 
was also noted that staff were working very hard to help the Pilgrim Hospital 
ratings;

 Some members thanked Trust representatives for the progress being made, 
for their honesty in answering questions raised and for the confident way 
services were being improved. One area highlighted as needing more work 
was communicating better with the general public.  One member extended 
thanks to staff at Pilgrim Hospital, Boston for the level of care they had 

Page 6



5
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

received.  The Committee was advised that from comments received from 
friends and families of patients, there was support that the level of care 
provided was getting better; and

 One member enquired whether staff had access to the Datex IT system.  
Confirmation was given that staff had access to Datex; and that any members 
of staff having problems, a Datex Team was available to help with any issues.

The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee extended thanks to the representatives 
for the on-going work of the Trust.

RESOLVED

1. That the Care Quality Commission's findings as detailed in the report be 
noted and that a further update be received on the ULHT's progress in 
response to the CQC inspection at the 20 March 2019 meeting.

2. That the progress made by Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust in improving 
quality and safety since the inspections in February and April 2018 and the 
update to the Committee in September 2018 be noted.

73    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS SERVICES AT UNITED 
LINCOLNSHIRE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report from United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 
which provided an update on the provision of children and young people's services.

Jan Sobieraj, Chief Executive, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust and Dr Neill 
Hepburn, Medical Director, United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust were in attendance for 
this item.

The Committee was reminded of the temporary model of care that had been 
implemented on 6 August 2018, details of which were shown on page 106 of the 
report presented.

The Committee was updated on the performance of the interim model over the first 
four months of operation, the number of transfers completed, the activity taken place 
on each site; the issues encountered; and the actions undertaken to resolve those 
issues; and the importance of the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health 
(RCPCH) Independent Review Report.  It was highlighted that the Royal College had 
been supportive of the work that had been done and of the measures proposed.

The following Appendices supported the report:

 Appendix A – A copy of the United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust – 
Paediatrics (Service Design review by the Royal College of Paediatrics and 
Child Health – 9 October 2018); and

 Appendix B – A copy of United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust – RCPCH 
Action Plan.

Page 7



6
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

Note: Councillor Mrs K Cook advised the Committee that she was a patient; and on 
the governing body of Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.

During discussion, the Committee raised the following issues:-

 The up-skilling of doctors recruited from overseas.  The Committee was 
advised that doctors recruited from overseas tended to come into post at a 
junior level; training would then be given to help develop them to function at a 
middle grade doctor level.  It was noted that unfortunately, due to differing 
practices and procedures abroad, some doctors did not meet the necessary 
competences required;

 Some concerns were expressed relating to the public perception of services; 
particular reference was made to the fears amongst expectant women having 
babies at Boston, including a reference to the impending night closure of the 
paediatric assessment unit.  Confirmation was given to the Committee that 
there was no plan for the overnight closure of the paediatric assessment unit.  
The unit was open 24/7; and that feedback received from families had 
indicated that the service was now operating better.  There was an 
understanding from the Trust representatives present that communicating the 
message to the public concerning the interim model could have been better;

 One member expressed concern to the risks associated with an increase in 
home birth rates to 10% and midwife led care to 40%.  The Committee was 
advised that the national drive for mid-wifery-led care was all about giving 
expectant women choice; and that in Lincolnshire it was about creating the 
right choice for them and their baby.  Confirmation was given that in 
Lincolnshire there was an ambition to increase the rate of home births from 
2.5% to 5%.  It was noted that a home birth would only be offered in situations 
when it was safe to do so;

 Confirmation was sought as to whether the vacant Clinical Director post had 
been filled.  The Committee was advised that the Clinical Director post had 
been filled; and that that work was on-going to develop and up-skill the 
workforce;

 Members welcomed the progress made at Appendix B – United Lincolnshire 
NHS Trust - RCPCH Report Action Plan.  A request was made for the 
Committee to be able to view the questions received from service users.  A 
question was also asked whether trade unions were asked to input in to the 
Communication Strategy.  Confirmation was given that views were sought 
from trade unions and other organisations;

 Page 155 – Paragraph 6.3.5 A request was made to ensure that 
recommendations were clear and concise;

 Page 107 – A question was asked in relation to Impact on Patients whether 
there were any comparison figures.  Confirmation was given that since the 
introduction of the interim model, no patient safety incidents had been 
experienced or reported.  It was highlighted that unfortunately, there was no 
available data to say what had happen previously;

 A question was asked whether CCGs and the Lincolnshire Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership were likely to take on board the recommendation 
from the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health which urged working 

Page 8



7
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

with CCGs to look at opportunities to expand children's services at Pilgrim 
Hospital, Boston rather than contracting them.  The Committee was advised 
that representatives present had not received a formal response; and the 
Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership was in particular 
focusing on the sustainability of services;

 Whether the interim model for children and young people services at Pilgrim 
Hospital, Boston ED would be able to continue.  The Committee was advised 
that the interim model would continue;

 What the dates and locations were for the meetings in Spalding and 
Skegness.  It was agreed that these would be made available to the 
Committee;

 What action had been taken to minimise the disruption to families having to 
attend Lincoln.  The Committee was advised that some engagement with 
families had taken place which had resulted in some support actions.  Also, 
feedback from other voluntary organisations had helped the Trust develop 
their required skill sets; and

 One member asked if some details could be provided around the on-going 
complaint referred to in the report.  The Committee was advised that this 
information would be shared with the Committee. 

The Chairman on behalf of the Committee thanked the ULHT representatives for their 
update on children and young people services.

RESOLVED

1. That the report of the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, and 
the action of ULHT in response be noted.

2. That a further update from ULHT on Children and Young People Services 
be received by the Committee at the 20 March 2019 meeting, to include 
risk analysis.

74    GRANTHAM ACCIDENT AND EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT - REFERRAL 
TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

The Chairman advised the Committee that the Health Scrutiny Officer understood 
that South West Lincolnshire CCG and United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust had 
submitted their report to the Minister of State for Health before 31 December 2018.  
The Committee was advised further that the Minister of State had not yet released 
the report to the Committee.  Confirmation had also been received that South West 
Lincolnshire CCG and United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust did not feel it 
appropriate to unilaterally release the report submitted to the Secretary of State, as 
the release of the report was a matter for him.

The Chairman reported that he was proposing to write on behalf of the Committee to 
the South West Lincolnshire CCG and United Lincolnshire Hospitals (ULHT) NHS 
Trust to request release of the above said report to the Committee.

Page 9



8
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

Also, the Chairman advised that he would write to the Secretary of State for Health 
urging him to give urgent consideration and make a determination on the January 
2018 referral.

Local Division Members recorded their frustration at the reluctance of the CCG and 
ULHT to release the report; and at the non-determination by the Secretary State for 
Health of the January 2018 referral; and to the fact that there was still no resolution 
for the people of Grantham and surrounding area on the absence of overnight 
emergency care.

Detailed at Appendix A was a record (since August 2016) relating to the Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire and the Grantham and District A&E.

The Health Scrutiny Officer highlighted to the Committee that a second reading of a 
Private Members Bill relating to Local Authority Health Scrutiny, which included a 
provision to require the Secretary of State for Health to reply to referrals within 45 
days.  

The Committee supported the action proposed by the Chairman.

RESOLVED

1. That the Committee wished to put on record its serious concerns that thirty 
months after Grantham A & E was closed 'temporarily' overnight on the 
grounds of patient safety there was still no resolution for the people of 
Grantham and the surrounding area on the absence of overnight 
emergency care.

2. That the Chairman writes to South West Lincolnshire CCG and United 
Lincolnshire NHS Trust to request that they release the report they have 
submitted to the Minister of State for Health.

3. That the Chairman writes to the Secretary of State for Health again seeking 
a determination on the 2018 referral by the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire. 

75    NHS LONG TERM PLAN

The Committee gave consideration to a report from Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny 
Officer, which provided an overview of the NHS Long Term Plan.  

The Committee was advised that on 7 January 2019, the NHS had published the 
NHS Long Term Plan, which covered a ten year period.  A summary of each chapter 
of the Plan was detailed within the report presented.

The Committee agreed that the next steps on the NHS Long Term Plan would 
include:

Page 10



9
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

 Consideration of the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership's engagement on their plans to implement NHS Local Plan (to 
begin in the next few weeks, possibly to be an agenda item for 20 February 
2019);

 Consideration of proposals for the development of urgent treatment centres in 
Lincolnshire;

 Consideration of the consultation on the STP's formal proposals;
 A workshop for the Committee on the NHS Long Term Plan; and
 Identification of aspects in the Long Term Plan, for example cancer care and 

mental health, to be given more detailed consideration.

The Committee also agreed that the next steps should not include:

 Consideration of items in detail relating to the County Council's public health 
and adult social care functions, as these are within the remit of the Adults and 
Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee, although Health Scrutiny 
Committee could take an overview; and

 Over-detailed consideration of organisational and related issues, which draw 
the Committee's attention away from patient-facing services.

RESOLVED

1. That the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan be noted.

2. That the next steps for the Committee relating to the NHS Long Term Plan 
should include:

 Consideration of the Lincolnshire STP's engagement on their plans to 
implement NHS Local Plan (to begin in the next few weeks, possibly to 
be an agenda item for 20 February 2019);

 Consideration of proposals for the development of urgent treatment 
centres in Lincolnshire;

 Consideration of the consultation on the STP's formal proposals;
 A workshop for the Committee on the NHS Long Term Plan; and
 Identification of aspects in the Long Term Plan, for example cancer 

care and mental health, to be given more detailed consideration.

76    NON-EMERGENCY PATIENT TRANSPORT SERVICE - UPDATE

Pursuant to Minute number 66(3) from the meeting held on 12 December 2018, the 
Committee gave consideration to a report from the Lincolnshire West Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), which provided an update concerning the Non-
Emergency Patient Transport Service.

The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Sarah-Jane Mills, Chief Operating Officer, 
Lincolnshire West CCG and Tim Fowler, Director of Commissioning and Contracting, 
Lincolnshire West CCG.

Page 11



10
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

 
Attached at Appendix A to the report were details of Activity and Performance against 
Key Performance Indicators – July 2017 to November 2018 for the Committee to 
consider.  It was highlighted to the Committee that call handling information had been 
very low in November, with no month on month improvement and that cancelled 
journey performance had been worse in November than it had been in October.  It 
was noted that all other KPIs had shown month on month improvement.

The Committee was advised that Thames Ambulance Service Limited (TASL) had 
recently put forward a revised trajectory for performance improvement and that this 
was being considered by the CCG.  It was also highlighted that the CCG was also in 
discussion with TASL to drive forward quality improvements relating to the on-going 
programme of CCG quality visits.  It was highlighted further that the Care Quality 
Commission was expected to publish their final report following their October 2018 
inspection visits to TASL sites.

The Committee was reassured that the Lincolnshire West CCG would continue to 
work to address the concerns raised regarding TASL's continued unacceptable 
performance.  However, it was currently the view of the CCG that there was an 
unacceptable level of risk of giving notice to exit the contract and moving to a new 
provider during the winter.  It was reported that the CCG would update its 
assessment of risk associated with the TASL contract in light of changing 
circumstances and new information and in the absence of significant improvement 
might give notice at a future date.

During discussion, the Committee raised the following points:

 That the graphs included at Appendix A did not provided meaningful 
information.  Representatives agreed that some of the KPIs could be more 
meaningful and that this would be looked at as part of any re-negotiation.  It 
was agreed that for the next meeting the graphs would be refined and that 
additional information would be included, for example information on the 
patient experience.  It was noted that the information on the current KPIs 
provided was the whole picture, and was in accordance with the contract 
requirements;

 Voluntary Car Drivers – It was highlighted that voluntary drivers were vital to 
the non-emergency transport service.  It was noted that the number of 
voluntary car driver vacancies were at the same level as when TASL first took 
over the contract.  It was noted further  that although the situation had 
recovered, there was no way of quantifying the impact of TASL's earlier 
decision on voluntary car drivers;

 Some concern was expressed relating to the due diligence process taken prior 
to the contract being awarded.  Reassurance was given to the Committee that 
all elements of the due diligence process had been followed; and what was 
apparent now was that the company appointed was not able to meet 
performance requirements, as TASL had not realised the magnitude of the 
task and the specific challenges of Lincolnshire.  There had been some 
resource gaps at the start of the contract for example not having enough 
crewed vehicles.  It was highlighted that TASL bid for the contract at a set 

Page 12



11
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE

23 JANUARY 2019

value; and that it was up to TASL to put in the required capacity to meet the 
contract and protect patients in Lincolnshire.  One member highlighted that the 
cheapest option was not always the best option; 

 Concern was also expressed that it was costing some Trusts money to meet 
the shortfall created by TASL.  The Committee was advised that the CCG was 
supporting Trusts to ensure that any outlay was reimbursed;

 One member enquired whether penalties had been imposed on TASL.  
Confirmation was given that penalties had been imposed.  Reassurance was 
given that the CCG was taking the situation very seriously; and was reviewing 
the situation on the ground on a daily basis; and that the CCG was having 
regular conversations with TASL; and was providing them with direction when 
necessary, as it was not just performance indicators, it was the quality of the 
service and the patient experience that was important;

 One member enquired whether there was a contingency plan in place if TASL 
decided to leave the contract.  The Committee was advised that the CCG 
would try to avoid that happening; however, if it was to happen conversations 
had already been had with another provider who would help provide the 
service.  It was however, the view of the CCG that the TASL workforce was 
very committed to their work; that frontline line staff had stepped up; and were 
aiming to provide a good service. It was thought that the way the company 
was structured was not helping the overall situation;  

 A question was asked as to what was the tipping point.  The Committee was 
advised that there was not a tipping point.  Performance would continue to be 
managed on a day to day basis;

 Some concern was expressed that the fast track journey target had not been 
met; and a question was asked as to how many people had been affected by 
it.  The Committee was advised that transport for any patient was determined 
by need and the level of support required, and that this was done by the 
hospital.  Most patients in an end of life situation would go home in an EMAS 
ambulance and that the whole process would be managed very sensitively.  It 
was noted that there was an estimated 150 fast track patients a month; and if 
any patient had to go home immediately, support would always be given;

 Some members agreed that exiting from the contract now was not the right 
course of action.  The Healthwatch representative offered assistance to the 
CCG to help with visits.  The CCG accepted Healthwatch's  offer; and

 Confirmation was given to the Committee that the CCG did have 
conversations with neighbouring CCG colleagues on a weekly basis.  It was 
noted that generally it was a requirement for the CCG to manage its own area, 
but because of the extent of the areas served by TASL, NHS England had 
become involved in performance monitoring.

RESOLVED

1. That the Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service Update report be 
received and that bi-monthly updates continue to be received from Thames 
Ambulance Service Limited, with the next update being on 20 February 
2019.

Page 13



12
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
23 JANUARY 2019

2. That bi-monthly updates be received from the Lincolnshire West CCG at 
alternate monthly meetings, the next one being on 20 March 2019.

3. That consideration be given to the CQC report on Thames Ambulance 
Service as soon as it becomes available.

77    HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE - WORK 
PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to a report from Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, 
which enabled the Committee to consider and comment on the content of its work 
programme, to ensure scrutiny activity was focussed where it could be of greatest 
benefit.

The Committee gave consideration to the work programme as detailed on pages 
203/204 of the report presented.

The Committee was also asked to consider the role of the Committees working group 
on the finances of the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership.

The Committee requested further clarity regarding the purdah period for the 
forthcoming district council elections.  The advice received was that it was possible 
for the Committee to continue to meet during the pre-election period and conduct its 
business as usual.  However, it was acknowledged that the situation was complex.

The Chairman advised that a question had been received from Fighting 4 Life 
Lincolnshire, which enquired as to how the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire was going to monitor the consultations of the most vulnerable people in 
Lincolnshire (under the Equality Act).  The Chairman suggested that if the Committee 
wished to pursue how the NHS met its equality duties, then item could be included in 
the work programme for the next meeting.

RESOLVED

That the work programme presented be agreed, subject to the inclusion of the 
changes detailed above.

The meeting closed at 1.20 pm

Page 14



 

THE HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 

Boston Borough 
Council 

East Lindsey District 
Council 

City of Lincoln 
Council 

Lincolnshire County 
Council 

North Kesteven 
District Council 

South Holland 
District Council 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

West Lindsey District 
Council 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
 
20 February 2019 
 
Chairman's Announcements 

 
 

1.  Head and Neck Cancer Services – Reconfiguration Across the East Midlands 
 
Head and neck cancer services are a specialised serviced, commissioned by NHS 
England.  Head and neck cancers are rare and account for only 3% of all cancers, 
and the primary form of treatment is surgery, which usually takes place at a 
specialist centre.   Across the east midlands, 600 patients are treated by surgery 
each year.   Currently there are four specialist centres in the east midlands: Derby, 
Leicester, Northampton and Nottingham.  
 
On 12 September 2018, I reported to the Committee that NHS England was 
considering developing proposals to reduce the number of specialist centres in the 
east midlands from four to three, two or even one.  Maintaining a safe and 
sustainable workforce at the four specialist centres was a key issue.   
 
Following an informal meeting of health overview and scrutiny chairmen on 
11 September 2018, NHS England agreed that it would attend each health 
overview and scrutiny committee separately to present its proposals, if requested 
to do so. 
 
On 30 January 2019, NHS England advised by letter that since this work had 
started the workforce position had improved, but work was still needed to ensure a 
safe and sustainable level of service.    
 
NHS England also advised: -  
 
 "There has been much engagement with clinicians and patients about what 

a future model may look like as it was agreed that doing the same was not 
an option.  We also know that there will be some changes to the standards 
for surgery, but these are some way off.  From the clinical engagement 
work, and from the findings of the Getting It Right First Time review of oral 
maxillofacial services, moving to larger teams to deliver the services seems 
the right approach to achieve greater resilience, and supporting services 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



local where possible and only moving more complex work. 
 
 "However, having listened to local views and on the advice of the national 

clinical reference group, specialised commissioning has concluded that a 
network approach could deliver a more sustainable workforce.  Therefore 
we have asked the surgical centres to collaborate and work with all trusts 
within the east midlands, to develop a network model with specialised 
commissioning.  Working in this way will build on the strengths of the current 
services and continue to produce the best outcomes for patients.  

 
 "Specialised commissioning will work closely with the four surgical trusts to 

ensure that the work done to date will inform the options.  The specifics of 
this new approach and revised timescales and outputs will be worked 
through over the coming month and we are discussing with the Cancer 
Alliance how they would like to be involved in developing the network 
approach." 

 
NHS England has stated that it will provide updates as the project develops. 
 
 

2.  United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust - Care Quality Commission Report 
on Pilgrim Emergency Department (Published 30 January 2019) 
 
On 23 January 2019, the Committee received a report from United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust on their responses to various Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) inspections.  The report referred to two inspections focused on Pilgrim 
Hospital Emergency Department.  The first of these had taken place on 
30 November 2018, where the CQC had published its report on 20 December 
2018. 
 
The report to the January meeting also referred to a further inspection, which had 
taken place on 18 December 2018 and referred to informal feedback from the CQC 
where they had noted some improvements including nursing and medical staffing 
levels, which matched patient acuity.  However, the informal feedback indicated 
that the CQC had remained concerned about the issues raised in the November 
2018 inspection. 
 
On 30 January 2019, the CQC published its report relating to its unannounced 
inspection of Pilgrim Hospital Emergency Department on 18 December 2018.  The 
CQC's main findings were:   
 

 There was an unreliable and inconsistent system in place to identify critically 
ill patients who may present to the department.  The triage process was not 
effective in the early detection of acutely unwell patients.  

 Patients did not always have an early warning score calculated at triage, 
despite their presenting condition, indicating they may be at risk of 
deterioration. 

 Patients arriving by ambulance remained on ambulances for significant 
amounts of time, despite a presenting medical condition which had the 
potential to deteriorate.  

Page 16



 Patients at risk of deteriorating consciousness levels were not monitored 
effectively.  

 Patients arriving by ambulance and brought into the department were not 
always clinically assessed by the Pre-Hospital Practitioner, who was reliant 
on observations from the ambulance crew. This posed a risk to patients as 
the Pre-Hospital Practitioner did not have the most up to date information 
and the patients presenting condition may have worsened. 

 Patients in the ambulance corridor did not always have observations 
performed in line with trust protocol.  Patients went for long periods without 
observations. 

 The Rapid Assessment and Treatment process was ineffective at reducing 
ambulance handover times.  

 Children in the department were placed at risk of harm as they were not 
cared for by nursing staff with the necessary competencies to provide safe 
and effective care.  Whilst there was an identified registered children's nurse 
in the department caring for some children, there was no oversight of new 
arrivals to the department, furthermore we observed children being triaged 
by nurses without additional paediatric competencies. 

 
However the CQC noted the following improvements since its previous inspection 
in November 2018: 
 

 The trust had implemented a process for transferring patients to wards and 
other clinical areas, which did not impact on nurse staff to patient ratios. 

 Two hourly safety huddles had been introduced into the department. 

 Nurse and medical staffing levels and skill mix were sufficient to meet the 
needs of patients during the period of our inspection. 

 The trust had taken some action to ensure the ‘fit to sit’ room was not 
overcrowded and patients were not cared for along a thoroughfare corridor 
in the department. They also tried to ensure patients being cared for in the 
main area of the department were of the same sex. 

 
The full report is available at the following link: -  
 
https://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAJ0259.pdf 
 
The Committee is due to receive an update from ULHT on its action plans in 
response to the CQC inspections at its 20 March meeting.   
 

Page 17

https://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAJ0259.pdf


3.  Care Quality Commission – Workshop for the Committee 
 
On 31 January 2018, I met Michele Hurst and David Potter from the Primary 
Medical Services Directorate of the Care Quality Commission (CQC), whose 
inspections responsibilities include GP services, out of hours GP services, urgent 
care centres, and dental services.  
 
The Primary Medical Services Directorate is one of three directorates within the 
CQC; the other two directorates are Adult Social Care; and Hospitals, Mental 
Health and Community Services.   
 
A new inspection regime for GP practices is being introduced by the Primary 
Medical Services Directorate of the CQC from 1 April 2019.  Michele Hurst has 
offered a workshop for members of this Committee, together with members of the 
Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee, delivered by CQC 
colleagues from the Primary Medical Services and Adult Social Care directorates.   
I am liaising with the Chairman of the Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee on the date for this workshop.    
 
 

 
 

Page 18



 

THE HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 

Boston Borough 
Council 

East Lindsey District 
Council 

City of Lincoln 
Council 

Lincolnshire County 
Council 

North Kesteven 
District Council 

South Holland 
District Council 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

West Lindsey District 
Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of John Turner, Senior Responsible Officer, 
Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
 
20 February 2019 
 
Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership:  Engagement and the NHS Long Term Plan 

 

Summary:  
 
On 23 January 2019, the Committee received an initial item on the NHS Long Term Plan 
and was advised that local health systems would be expected to engage with their local 
communities and delivery partners in developing plans, which would be based on a 
comprehensive assessment of population need.  NHS England expects that local health 
systems will build on their existing plans and set out proposals for how they will deliver the 
outcomes set out in the Long Term Plan.  Local implementation plans will then be brought 
together in a detailed national implementation programme in the autumn of 2019.   
 
On 23 January 2019, the Committee initially agreed that the next steps on the NHS Long 
Term Plan would initially include consideration of the engagement by the Lincolnshire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) on its plans to implement NHS Local 
Plan.  The Committee also indicated that it would wish to consider proposals for the 
development of urgent treatment centres in Lincolnshire.   
 
John Turner, the Senior Responsible Officer for the Lincolnshire STP, is due to attend to 
provide information on the STP's plans for engagement. 
  

 

Actions Required: 
 
(1) To consider the information presented on behalf of the Lincolnshire Sustainability 

and Transformation Partnership on how it plans to engage with local communities 
and partners, in the development of proposals to deliver the outcomes in the NHS 
Long Term Plan; and the links to existing proposals developed in Lincolnshire.   

 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



1. Background 
 

Introduction 
 

On 7 January 2019, the NHS published the NHS Long Term Plan, which is available 
at the following link:  
 
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/ 
 
Committee Consideration on 23 January 2019 
 
The publication of the NHS Long Term Plan was reported to the Health Scrutiny 
Committee on 23 January 2019.  As an initial step, the Committee agreed that its 
next steps on the NHS Long Term Plan would include: 
 

 consideration of the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership's engagement on their plans to implement NHS Long Term Plan; 

 consideration of proposals for the development of urgent treatment centres in 
Lincolnshire; 

 a workshop for the Committee on the NHS Long Term Plan; and 

 identification of aspects in the Long Term Plan, for example cancer care and 
mental health, to be given more detailed consideration. 

 
The Committee confirmed that it would be considering the public consultation on the 
STP's formal proposals, which are expected after a period of engagement.  
 
John Turner, Senior Responsible Officer for the Lincolnshire STP, is due to attend to 
provide information on the STP's plans for engagement. 
 
 

2. Consultation  and Conclusion 
 

As indicated above, local health systems, in effect sustainability and transformation 
partnerships, will be expected to engage on their own versions of the NHS Long 
Term Plan during 2019.  The Health Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider 
the information presented on behalf of the Lincolnshire STP on how it plans to 
engage with local communities and partners, in the development of proposals to 
deliver the outcomes in the NHS Long Term Plan; and the links to existing proposals 
developed in Lincolnshire. 
 

Background Papers - No background papers within Section 100D of the Local 
Government Act 1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by John Turner, Senior Responsible Officer, Lincolnshire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership, who can be contacted by e-mail at 

John.Turner@SouthLincolnshireCCG.nhs.uk 
 

Page 20

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
mailto:John.Turner@SouthLincolnshireCCG.nhs.uk


 

THE HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 

Boston Borough 
Council 

East Lindsey District 
Council 

City of Lincoln 
Council 

Lincolnshire County 
Council 

North Kesteven 
District Council 

South Holland 
District Council 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

West Lindsey District 
Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of David Coleman, Chief Legal Officer 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
 
20 February 2019 
 
Grantham Accident and Emergency Department – Referral 
to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care   

 

Summary:  

On 17 January 2018, the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire decided to refer the 
continued overnight closure of Grantham and District Hospital Accident and Emergency 
Department to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, on the grounds of 
inadequate consultation.  On 10 September 2018, the Minister of State for Health 
advised that South West Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and United 
Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) had been asked by 31 December 2018 to 
provide the Minister of State a report, including a timetable, on how they planned to carry 
out the engagement and consultation, envisaged in the report of the Independent 
Reconfiguration Panel of March 2017.   
 
Since the last meeting of the Committee on 23 January, South West Lincolnshire CCG has 
confirmed that a report was submitted to the Minister of State by 31 December 2018.  The 
CCG has also stated that in line with normal working protocol, the release of the report is a 
matter for the Minister of State rather than the CCG or ULHT. 
 
Also following the last meeting, the Secretary of State was also asked to release the report 
and make a determination on the referral as soon as possible.   
 

 

Actions Required: 
 
To decide on the next steps in relation to the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire's January 2018 referral of the Grantham and District Hospital's overnight 
closure of Accident and Emergency Department to the Secretary of State for Health and 
Social Care. 

 
(Note: Any information made available after 12 February 2019 will be circulated to the 

Committee as soon as possible.) 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



1. Background 
 

Current Referral to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care 
 

On 17 January 2018, the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire decided to 
refer the continued overnight closure of Grantham and District Hospital Accident and 
Emergency Department to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care.  This 
referral was based on the grounds of inadequate consultation on the continued 
overnight closure.  The referral statement and supporting documents were 
submitted to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care on 31 January 2018.  
 
Following the referral, an official in the Department of Health and Social Care 
advised by letter on two occasions that the Committee's referral had not met the 
requirements of the regulations and the Secretary of State's guidance.  In response 
to each letter the Chairman provided a clear argument that the referral had satisfied 
these requirements.   
 
On 10 September 2018, the Minister of State for Health advised that South West 
Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group and United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS 
Trust had been asked by 31 December 2018 to provide the Minister of State a 
report, including a timetable, of how they planned to carry out engagement and 
consultation envisaged in the report of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel of 
March 2017.   
 
Further clarification was sought on the status of the January 2018 referral, and it 
was confirmed in November 2018 that it was still live.   
 
Health Scrutiny Committee Decision on 23 January 2019 
 
The Minister of State for Health had not released the report by the time of the 
Committee's last meeting on 23 January 2019.  After consideration of a report, the 
Committee resolved:   
 
(1) To further put on record the Committee's continued serious concerns that 

thirty months after Grantham A&E was closed 'temporarily' overnight on the 
grounds of patient safety there is still no resolution for the people of 
Grantham and the surrounding area on this absence of overnight 
emergency care.  

 
(2) To write to South West Lincolnshire CCG and United Lincolnshire Hospitals 

NHS Trust: 
 
(a) to seek written confirmation that a plan for engagement and consultation 

was submitted prior to 31 December 2018 deadline; and 
(b) to request that they release the report that they have submitted to the 

Minister of State for Health. 
 

(3) To write to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, again seeking 
a determination on the 2018 referral by the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire.  
 

Page 22



These letters were sent on 24 January 2019, and copied to the Member of 
Parliament for Grantham and Stamford.   
 
Response of South West Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
On 30 January 2019, South West Lincolnshire CCG replied to the letter (a joint 
response also on behalf of ULHT: 
  
 "I am able to confirm that South West Lincolnshire CCG and ULHT complied 

with the request in the Minister’s letter by the due date of 31 December 2018.  
 
 "I note that you have written to the Secretary of State on this issue. As clearly 

described in the contents of the original letter from the Minister, and indeed in 
line with normal working protocol, the release of our response to the Minister 
is a matter for the Minister’s Office rather than the CCG or ULHT." 

 
2. Assessment of Current Position 
 
In the absence of the Minister of State for Health publishing the report submitted by 
the CCG and ULHT by 31 December 2018, the Committee is invited to consider the 
current position and decide its next steps. 
 
The Minister of State for Health had requested a report, including a timetable, on 
how the CCG and ULHT planned to carry out the engagement and consultation, 
envisaged in the report of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) of March 
2017.  As the IRP concluded that there should be a county-wide consideration of 
A&E services, the Committee may wish to reflect on the extent to which the contents 
of CCG/ULHT report to the Minister of State is likely to make reference to the 
Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership's plans for engagement 
and consultation on the acute services review.  It is already been reported to the 
Committee that the acute services review includes proposals for Grantham A&E. 
The report of the East of England Clinical Senate (December 2017), whose 
recommendations were approved by ULHT, recommended that ULHT continue to 
provide a Grantham and District Hospital A&E service on the current opening hours 
of 08.00-18.30, seven days a week until a more definitive long term urgent and 
emergency care plan was developed and agreed.  It is difficult to see how any long 
term plan could be developed outside the acute services review process.   
 
3. Other Background Information 
 
In this section of the report, together with Appendix A, further detail is provided on 
Grantham A&E, since it was closed overnight in August 2016.  There is also a 
section on the role of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel.  
 
Chronology and Relationship with Previous Referral 
 
A previous referral of the overnight closure of Grantham A&E was made by the 
Committee in December 2016, which led to a determination by the Secretary of 
State for Health in August 2017, in which he endorsed the findings of the 
Independent Reconfiguration Panel, who had concluded in March 2017:   
 

Page 23



"The time has come for an open and honest appraisal, both of the options for 
future emergency care delivery at Grantham and more widely across 
Lincolnshire.  Recognising that the staffing threshold currently required to 
restore the service at Grantham is unlikely to be achieved in a sustainable 
way CCGs, as commissioners of these services, must as a matter of urgency 
work with the local providers (including mental health care and community 
providers as well as ULHT) and the HSC to engage and consult the public 
across Lincolnshire on current services and what might be achievable and 
sustainable in the future." 

 
The IRP's conclusion was thus wider than Grantham A&E.  The Committee's 
January 2018 referral was made on the grounds of inadequate consultation, and 
included the above conclusion of the IRP in its submission.     
 
A chronology is set out in Appendix A to this report, which also includes other 
developments such as the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership; and the NHS Long Term Plan. 
 
Role of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel 
 
The Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) is an advisory non-departmental 
public body, sponsored by the Department of Health and Social Care.  Its website 
states that the IRP is the independent expert on NHS service change.   
 
The Secretary of State's guidance (Local Authority Health Scrutiny – Guidance to 
Support Local Authorities and Their Partners to Deliver Health Scrutiny – June 
2014) states (section 4.7.2):  
 
 "The Secretary of State may ask for advice from the Independent 

Reconfiguration Panel (IRP), an advisory non-departmental public body. The 
IRP will undertake an initial assessment of any referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health where its advice is requested.  It may then be asked to carry 
out a full review. Not all referrals to the Secretary of State for Health will 
automatically be reviewed in full by the IRP – this is at the Secretary of 
State’s discretion."   

 
From the above, there are three key points to emphasise: -  
 
(1) The IRP is an advisory not a decision making body.  Decisions on referrals 

rest with the Secretary of State.  
 

(2) It is not automatic for the Secretary of State to seek the advice of the IRP. 
 

(3) Where the IRP is involved it will undertake an 'initial assessment'.  Depending 
on the Secretary of State's view of the advice in the initial assessment, a full 
review by the IRP may follow.  

 
In relation to (3) above, the IRP's guidance indicates that a full review would include 
invitations to submit evidence; site visits; and oral evidence-taking from key 
stakeholders and interested parties. The IRP states that full reviews are only 
required in exceptional circumstances.  However, evidence from the IRP's website 

Page 24



indicates that since the implementation of the 2013 regulations there have been 24 
initial assessments undertaken by the IRP, and none of these have progressed to a 
full review.  Furthermore, a recurring theme in the IRP's advice on each of these 
reviews is that the matter can be resolved by local action.  For example, the IRP's 
findings on the Committee's December 2016 referral included the phrase 'local 
action':   
 
 "The Panel considers each referral on its merits and concludes that this 

referral is not suitable for full review because further local action by the NHS 
with the Council can address the issues raised." 

 
It can be noted that under the previous 2002 regulations, under which the referral 
process was less constrained, two of the Health Scrutiny Committee's referrals 
reached the full review stage and oral evidence-taking sessions were held in 
Lincolnshire.     
 
There is no readily available information on those reviews where the Secretary of 
State decides not to seek the advice of the IRP.   
 
4. Consultation 
 
This item relates to a referral by the Committee to the Secretary of State for Health 
and Social Care on the continued overnight closure of Grantham A&E on the 
grounds of inadequate consultation, which was made in January 2018.   
 
5. Conclusion
 
The Committee is invited to consider the next steps with regard to the Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire's referral of the Grantham and District 
Hospital's overnight closure of Accident and Emergency Department to the 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. 
 
6. Appendices - These are listed below and attached at the end of the report 
 

Appendix A 
Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire and Grantham and 
District Hospital A&E - A Chronology (Since August 2016) 

 
Background Papers - No background papers within Section 100D of the Local 
Government Act 1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, who can be 
contacted on 01522 553607 or by e-mail at Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 25

mailto:Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX A 
 

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire and 
Grantham and District Hospital A&E 

 
A Chronology (Since August 2016) 

 
 

 Date Event 

(1)  2 Aug 16 

 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) Board decided that 
with effect from 17 August 2016 A&E at Grantham and District Hospital 
(GDH) would be closed between 6.30 pm and 9.00 am for a period of 
three months, on the grounds of patient safety. This was because the 
number of substantive ULHT middle grade A&E doctors stood at 12.6 
against an establishment of 28.   
 

(2)  19 Sep 16 

 
An interim minor injuries service was opened from 6.30 pm to 11.30 pm 
seven days per week at GDH's Kingfisher Suite, operated by 
Lincolnshire Community Health Services NHS Trust.  Patients could 
access the service without an appointment for cuts, grazes and 
lacerations; minor scalds and burns; strains, sprains and suspected 
fractures; bites and stings; ear and throat infections; minor skin 
infections; minor eye conditions and infections.  The intention was that 
the service would operate while Grantham A&E was closed overnight.   
 

(3)  21 Sep 16 

 
The Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire (HSC) considered the 
ULHT decision of 2 August and recorded its support for the permanent 
reinstatement of overnight A&E at GDH.  HSC was not reassured that 
overnight A&E would be reinstated at GDH by 17 November 2016, 
owing to the difficulty of recruiting A&E staff, and anticipated a further 
extension to the temporary closure.  HSC agreed to reconsider the 
matter on 23 November 2016. 
 

(4)  1 Nov 16 

 
ULHT Board decided to extend the period of the closure to 17 Feb 
2017.  ULHT Board was also advised that the middle grade A&E doctor 
threshold to re-open GDH A&E overnight had been set at 
21 substantives and long term locums, against an establishment of 28 
middle grade doctors. 
   

Page 26



 

 Date Event 

(5)  23 Nov 16 

 
HSC decided to make a report (also known as a referral) to the 
Secretary of State on the grounds that the overnight closure of GDH 
A&E was not in the interests of the health service in the Grantham and 
surrounding area. 
 
This referral was made in accordance with Regulation 23(9)(c) of the 
Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. 
 

(6)  6 Dec 16 

 
The Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Plan was 
published, which included reference to a public consultation on a long 
term solution to GDH A&E.  It was stated that public consultation on the 
significant changes to hospital services in the Plan was expected in 
May 2017.   
  

(7)  15 Dec 16 

 
A report was submitted to the Secretary of State for Health in 
accordance with HSC's decision 23 November 2016. 
 

(8)  16 Dec 16 

 
The Lincolnshire County Council Meeting unanimously resolved that it 
could not support the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan in its current form and confirmed that the Council was prepared to 
work with all local NHS organisations to encourage them to adhere to 
and act upon the views which emerge from the public consultation.  
The Council also mandated the HSC to scrutinise the likely impact of 
the proposals in the STP on different medical services in all parts of the 
county. 
 

(9)  12 Jan 17 

 
HSC considered the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan at a special meeting and agreed a draft initial statement would be 
considered for approval on 18 January 2018. 
 

(10)  18 Jan 17 

 
HSC approved its initial statement on the Lincolnshire Sustainability 
and Transformation Plan, which indicated that it would like to see A&E 
services restored at GDH to the way they had operated prior to 
17 August 2016, when the 'temporary' overnight closure began.    
 

(11)  7 Feb 17 

 
The ULHT Board made a decision to reduce the period of overnight 
closure of GDH A&E, so that it would be closed from 6.30 pm to 
8.00 am (instead of 9.00 am), and extended the overnight closure for a 
further three months. 
 

Page 27



 

 Date Event 

(12)  22 Feb 17 

 
The Secretary of State advised the Chairman of the HSC that the 
Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) would complete an initial 
assessment of the referral by 22 March 2017, to see if it merited a full 
review by the IRP.   
   

(13)  7 Mar 17 

 
The ULHT Board confirmed the February 2017 decision to reduce the 
period of the overnight closure of GDH A&E, with the new closure 
hours of 6.30 pm to 8.00 am becoming effective from 27 March 2017.   
 

(14)  22 Mar 17 

 
The IRP completed its initial assessment and submitted it to the 
Secretary of State for Health. 
  

(15)  9 May 17 

 
The ULHT Board decided to extend the temporary closure of GDH A&E 
for a further three months. 
 

(16)  1 Aug 17 

 
The ULHT Board decided:  -  
 

 to continue with the opening hours of GDH A&E of 8.00 am - 
6.30 pm, implemented on 27 March 2017; 

 to review the overnight closure in three months; and 

 to work with CCGs to explore an interim service model for a 
24 hour emergency / out of hours service. 
 

Page 28



 

 Date Event 

(17)  2 Aug 17 

 
The Secretary of State published the March 2017 IRP report and 
advised the Chairman of HSC that he accepted the IRP's report and 
recommendations in full.  The letter from the Secretary of State 
included the following: 
 
 "After careful consideration the IRP is of the view that your 

referral does not warrant a full review and I accept the IRP's 
advice in full." 

 
 "They [IRP] recommend that as the staffing threshold currently 

required to restore the service at Grantham is unlikely to be 
achieved in a sustainable way, CCGs and local commissioners 
must work with local providers and the HSC to engage and 
consult the public on future services."   

 
The IRP report concluded:  
 
 "The Panel considers that the time has come for an open and 

honest appraisal, both of the options for future emergency care 
delivery at Grantham and more widely across Lincolnshire.  
Recognising that the staffing threshold currently required to 
restore the service at Grantham is unlikely to be achieved in a 
sustainable way CCGs, as commissioners of these services, 
must as a matter of urgency work with the local providers 
(including mental health care and community providers as well 
as ULHT) and the HSC to engage and consult the public across 
Lincolnshire on current services and what might be achievable 
and sustainable in the future. " 

 

(18)  13 Sep 17 

 
HSC considered the Secretary of State's letter of 2 August 2017 and 
the IRP report and put on record, pursuant to the advice of the IRP, its 
position that full, meaningful and transparent public consultation be 
undertaken on the future of A&E services across Lincolnshire by all 
appropriate sections of the NHS, to address the issues raised in the 
report of the IRP. 
 

Page 29



 

 Date Event 

(19)  11 Oct 17 

 
HSC considered a report from the Lincolnshire Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP), which included the following 
statement: 
 
 "Following the Secretary of State's letter to the Committee in 

August, work continues with local stakeholders to identify a short 
term solution to extend access to Grantham A&E during this 
winter and also to agree a sustainable model for the town in the 
future." 

 
HSC recorded its serious concern at the lack of full, extensive and 
meaningful consultation on the proposals in the Lincolnshire 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan, and its concern that no 
consultation would be taking place before April 2018.   
 

(20)  7 Nov 17 

 
ULHT Board decided that: 
 

   subject to a safety review by NHS Improvement, ULHT would 
move to a decision to re-open GDH A&E at the December meeting 
of the ULHT Board; and 

   ULHT would continue to work with CCGs and partners to find a 
more sustainable model. 

 
The report to the Board on 7 November 2017 made reference to the 
overall increase in establishment for A&E middle grade doctors:     
 
 "It is also important to highlight that the funding for 

establishment has been increased since the previous papers 
submitted to the Trust Board. The funded establishment for 
middle grade posts has been increased to 38.0 whole time 
equivalent, an increase of 10.0 whole time equivalent since the 
last paper that was submitted to the Trust Board.  

 
 "Funding for middle grade establishment will further increase 

from 1/1/2018 to a total of 42.0, and again from 1/4/2018 to a 
total of 44.0."  

 

Page 30



 

 Date Event 

(21)  12 Dec 17 

 
The ULHT Board papers for 15 December 2017 were published, 
including: 
 
(a) the report of the East of England Clinical Senate, in which the 

Senate stated it did not support the reopening of the 24/7 A&E 
department at GDH on the grounds of potential adverse impact on 
patient safety at A&E Departments at all three ULHT hospitals; and 
the Senate made five recommendations, which included:  

 

 on the grounds of patient safety, that ULHT Trust Board 
reconsider the proposal to extend the current A&E service 
opening hours at GDH;   

 ULHT continue to provide a GDH A&E service on the current 
opening hours of 08.00-18.30, seven days a week until a more 
definitive long term urgent and emergency care plan was 
developed and agreed; and   

 in order to make it clear for patients and the public the type of 
service available at GDH A&E, ULHT look to re-labelling or 
re-naming the department, and ensure that it communicates 
that widely and the terminology ‘A&E Centre’ is not applied to 
GDH in any future model. 

 
(b) a letter from NHS Improvement, dated 5 December 2017, which 

strongly advised the ULHT Board to follow the recommendations in 
the Clinical Senate's report.   

 

(22)  13 Dec 17 

 
The HSC recorded its opposition to the conclusions of the East of 
England Clinical Senate on the basis that it would prejudice any future 
consultation on A&E services at GDH and the current restricted 
opening hours would in effect be made permanent; and the 
consultation exercise would be based on these opening hours as the 
status quo, rather than the previous 24/7 service. 
 
HSC requested that ULHT Board defer its planned decision on 
15 December 2017 in relation to the East of England Clinical Senate 
report to its next meeting on 26 January 2018, as this would enable the 
Health Scrutiny Committee to give detailed consideration to the Clinical 
Senate's report and recommendations at its next Committee meeting 
on 17 January 2018. 

 

Page 31



 

 Date Event 

(23)  15 Dec 17 

 
HSC's request to defer its decision was put before the ULHT Board, 
which was advised that ULHT had 'received direction in the form of a 
letter from NHS Improvement and had no option but to comply with that 
direction.'  
 
 ULHT Board resolved that: 
 

 on the basis of the Clinical Senate review, supported by the 
advice of the regulator, to endorse the recommendation that 
there would be no change to the current opening hours of the 
Grantham A&E department; 

 ULHT should accept advice to move to single A&E team; and 

 ULHT should urge the CCGs to move at pace to review urgent 
care across Lincolnshire.  

 

(24)  17 Jan 18 

 
HSC decided to make a report to the Secretary of State on the grounds 
that the consultation on the continued overnight closure of Grantham 
A&E had not been adequate.   
 
This referral was made in accordance with Regulation 23(9)(a) of the 
Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. 
 

(25)  17 Jan 18 

 
HSC considered an update from the Lincolnshire STP, which stated 
that the previous work on acute services was being refreshed, in effect 
the Acute Services Review.  HSC was also advised that it was not 
expected that there would any consultation on significant changes to 
services until the spring of 2018.  
   

(26)  31 Jan 18 

 
A report submitted to the Secretary of State in accordance with HSC's 
decision of 17 Jan 18. 
 

(27)  12 Feb 18 

 
An official in the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 
advised the Chairman of HSC that the report submitted on 31 January 
did not meet the requirements of the Local Authority (Public Health, 
Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.  
Furthermore, the letter stated that HSC had not provided evidence that 
conditions at GDH A&E had changed since the previous referral.   
 

Page 32



 

 Date Event 

(28)  20 Feb 18 

 
The Chairman of HSC replied to the DHSC letter of 12 February 2018, 
setting out in detail how HSC's referral complied with Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013.  The Chairman also refuted the DHSC's assertion of 
the need for evidence of change in the conditions at GDH A&E, as this 
was not a requirement of the regulations.    
 

(29)  27 Feb 18 

 
An official in the DHSC wrote to the Chairman of HSC advising that 
HSC's referral had not met a particular provision in the Secretary of 
State's guidance.   
 

(30)  15 Mar 18 

 
The Chairman of HSC replied to the DHSC letter of 27 February 2018, 
stating that the particular provision cited in the guidance did not apply 
to HSC's referral.  The Chairman of HSC also requested that the 
urgent and emergency care elements of the Lincolnshire Acute 
Services Review be accelerated to enable early consultation.  The 
Chairman of HSC urged the Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care to make a determination on HSC's referral.    
 

(31)  21 Mar 18 

 
HSC considered a report from the Lincolnshire STP on Urgent and 
Emergency Care, which included the Lincolnshire Urgent and 
Emergency Care Strategy 2018-2021, which stated the following: 
 

"Following the overnight closure of GDH A&E in August 2016, 
significant work is being undertaken to design the substantive 
urgent and emergency care services that will be offered on the 
site.  This work is mindful of the East of England Clinical Senate 
report (December 2017) and is being managed in line with the 
Pre-Consultation Business Case being produced by the STP 
operational delivery unit.  Whilst out of scope for this strategy, 
any service redesign work will be closely linked and incorporated 
in the Lincolnshire Urgent and Emergency Care delivery plan."  

 
HSC was also advised that the outcome of the Acute Services Review 
would not be completed until May 2018. 
 

(32)  31 May 18 

 
South West Lincolnshire CCG launched a survey on the continued 
operation of the interim evening minor injuries service at GDH (6.30 pm 
- 11.30 pm), with responses to the survey required by 28 June 2018.  
The CCG stated that during 2017 only 65 patients had been seen by 
the minor injury service. 
 

Page 33



 

 Date Event 

(33)  13 Jun 18 

 
HSC agreed to response to the CCG's survey on the proposal to 
discontinue interim evening minor injuries service at GDH.  HSC's 
response referred to the brevity of the survey period and requested that 
South West Lincolnshire CCG present a report to the HSC on 11 July 
2018, with a full rationale for the proposal. 
 

(34)  13 Jun 18 

 
HSC received a report from the Lincolnshire STP, which stated it was 
not possible to say when public consultation on the Acute Services 
Review proposals would commence, although it would not be during 
2018.   
 

(35)  11 July 18 

 
HSC received a report from South West Lincolnshire CCG on the 
interim minor injury service at GDH and agreed that the Chairman 
should write a letter to the South West Lincolnshire CCG on behalf of 
the Committee, requesting that: (a) the CCG defer its decision to close 
the service until a decision is made around the future services on offer 
at GDH; and (b) the CCG ensure that full promotion and signposting is 
undertaken, so that balanced decision could be made on its future.   
 

(36)  25 July 18 

 
South West Lincolnshire CCG Governing Body approved an 
arrangement whereby LCHS had agreed to extend the remit of their out 
of hours service at GDH to include a minor injury services from 6.30 
pm to 11.30 pm. The current standalone minor injury service would 
cease.  Any patient with a minor injury would be able to attend the out 
of hours service.   
 

(37)  10  Sept 18 

 
On 10 September, 2018, the Minister of State for Health advised the 
Chairman by letter that he had asked South West Lincolnshire CCG 
and ULHT to send to him by the end of December a report setting out, 
including a timetable, how they have carried out, or plan to carry out 
engagement and consultation envisaged in the IRP report of March 
2017.  This would then be shared with the Health Scrutiny Committee. 
The letter did not make any reference to the Secretary of State seeking 
the advice of the IRP on the January 2018 referral.       
 

(38)  14 Sept 18 

 
Chairman of HSC wrote to the Minister of State for Health seeking 
clarification of the status of the Committee's referral. 
 

Page 34



 

 Date Event 

(39)  6 Nov 18 

 
In response to the letters from the Chairman of HSC on, an official in 
the DHSC confirmed that the Secretary of State had asked the relevant 
NHS bodies to report on the implementation of the actions identified by 
the IRP by December 2018; and the January 2018 referral was 
ongoing.   
   

(40)  26 Nov 18 

 
A letter from NHS England to health scrutiny committees advised of the 
timetable for the national NHS Long Term Plan.  The letter advised that 
between January and the summer of 2019, NHS organisations, local 
councils and the voluntary sector would work together to develop a 
local strategy, tailored for their particular circumstances, that will help 
to deliver on the aims of the national long-term plan. 
   

(41)  7 Jan 19 

 
The NHS Long Term Plan was published, in which local health systems  
  
 "will be expected to engage with their local communities and 

delivery partners in developing plans, which will be based on a 
comprehensive assessment of population need. We expect that 
they will build on their existing plans and set out proposals for 
how they will deliver the outcomes set out in the Long Term 
Plan.  They will also take account of the different starting points 
and phasing of progress in different parts of the country. …  
Local implementation plans will then be brought together in a 
detailed national implementation programme in the autumn." 

 

(42)  23 Jan 19 

 
HSC further put on record its continued serious concerns that thirty 
months after GDH A&E was closed 'temporarily' overnight on the 
grounds of patient safety there was still no resolution for the people of 
Grantham and the surrounding area on this absence of overnight 
emergency care.  
 
HSC would write to South West Lincolnshire CCG and ULHT to seek 
written confirmation that a plan for engagement and consultation had 
been submitted prior to 31 December 2018 deadline; and to request 
that they release the report that they have submitted to the Minister of 
State for Health. 

 
HSC would also write to the Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care, again seeking a determination on the 2018 referral by the HSC.  
 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 

Boston Borough 
Council 

East Lindsey District 
Council 

City of Lincoln 
Council 

Lincolnshire County 
Council 

North Kesteven 
District Council 

South Holland 
District Council 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

West Lindsey District 
Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of David Coleman, Chief Legal Officer 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
 
20 February 2019 
 
Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - Work 
Programme  

 

Summary:  

This item enables the Committee to consider and comment on the content of its work 
programme, which is reviewed at each meeting of the Committee so that its content is 
relevant and will add value to the work of the Council and its partners in the NHS. 
Members are encouraged to highlight items that could be included for consideration in 
the work programme.  
 

 

Actions Required: 
 
(1) To review, consider and comment on the work programme set out in the report 

and to highlight for discussion any additional scrutiny activity, which could be 
included for consideration in the work programme. 
 

(2) To note the information in section 2 of this report, relating to the guidance issued 
to NHS commissioners on how they should meet the public sector equality duty, 
and to consider whether to seek further information on how local NHS 
organisations in Lincolnshire plan to meet this duty, when the relevant items are 
brought forward for the Committee's consideration.   
 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



1. Work Programme 
 

The items listed for today's meeting are set out below: -  
 

20 February 2019 – 10 am 

Item Contributor 

Lincolnshire Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership:  
Engagement and the NHS Long Term 
Plan 

John Turner, Senior Responsible Officer, 
Lincolnshire Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership  

Non-Emergency Patient Transport 
Mike Casey, Director of Operations, 

Thames Ambulance Service 

Grantham Accident and Emergency 
Department – Referral to the Secretary 
of State for Health and Social Care   

Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer 

 
Planned items for the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire are set out below:  
 

20 March 2019 – 10 am 

Item Contributor 

United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 
– Update on Care Quality Commission 
Inspection   

Senior Management Representatives, 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 

Children and Young Persons Services at 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 
- Update 

Senior Management Representatives, 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 

North West Anglia NHS Foundation 
Trust Update  

Management representatives from North 
West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust 

Update 

Dental Services in Lincolnshire 
Carole Pitcher, Contracts Manager 

Dental and Optometry, NHS England – 
Midlands & East (Central Midlands) 

Non-Emergency Patient Transport 
Service – Update 

Sarah-Jane Mills, Chief Operating 
Officer, Lincolnshire West CCG 

Tim Fowler, Director of Commissioning 
and Contracting, Lincolnshire West CCG  

Quality Accounts  - Arrangements for 
2019 

Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer 

 

Page 38



17 April 2019 – 10 am 

Item Contributor 

Older Adult Mental Health Services 

Jane Marshall, Director of Strategy, and 
Chris Higgins, Deputy Director of 

Operations, Lincolnshire Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust 

East Midlands Ambulance Service 
Update 

Sue Cousland, East Midlands 
Ambulance Service Divisional Manager, 

Lincolnshire 

Non-Emergency Patient Transport 
Mike Casey, Director of Operations, 

Thames Ambulance Service 

 
 

16 May 2019 – 10 am 

Item Contributor 

  

 
 
Items to be Programmed 
 

 Adult Immunisations 

 Developer and Planning Contributions for NHS Provision  

 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Update 

 CCG Role in Prevention 

 Cancer Strategy Update 

 Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Plan – Formal Consultation 

Elements:   

 Women's and Children's Services 

 Emergency and Urgent Care 

Appendix A to the report contains the work programme in a table format. 

2. Consultations by the NHS – Meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty 
  
At the last meeting of the Committee on 23 January 2019, it was agreed to give 
consideration on how the NHS meets its equalities duties in relation to 
consultations.  Three NHS England documents are relevant to this consideration: -  
 
(1) Guidance for NHS Commissioners on Equality and Health Inequalities Legal 

Duties (NHS England – 14 December 2015) 
 

(2) Planning, Assuring and Delivering Service Change for Patients – (NHS 
England - December 2013 [Revised October 2015 and Updated March 2018]) 
 

(3) Patient and Public Participation in Commissioning Health and Care: Statutory 
Guidance for Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England (NHS 
England Undated) 

Page 39



 

These three documents detail how commissioners such as CCGs should meet their 
public sector equality duty.  Section 1 of Document (1) above provides the most 
detail on the public sector equality duty.  Some extracts are set out below:  
 

"Publishing guidance or policies, or making decisions without demonstrating 
how you have paid due regard to the PSED leaves the organisation open to 
legal challenge.  
 
"This means CCGs and NHS England should understand the potential effect 
of policies and practices on people with characteristics that have been given 
protection under the Equality Act, especially in relation to their health 
outcomes and the experiences of patients, communities and the workforce. 
This will help the organisation to consider whether the policy or practice will 
be effective for all people."   

 
 "Having “due regard” to the public sector equality duty simply involves 

considering the aims of the Duty in a way that is proportionate to the issue at 
hand.  

 
 "Decision makers should ensure that they give real consideration to these 

aims and think about the impact of policies with rigour and with an open 
mind, in such a way that might influence the final decision. They should do 
this before and during policy formation and when a decision is taken. 
Addressing equality in this way should be considered business as usual, not 
an exceptional activity. Case law has established that what is important is not 
the preparation of a particular document, but that officials give proper, 
informed consideration to equality issues at the right time and that they keep 
a record of that consideration.  

 
"Equality analyses / equality impact assessments are just one of many ways 
of demonstrating compliance with the PSED.  

 
"It is important that any conclusions arising from your equality analyses are 
able to influence your policies and practices." 

 
The following extracts from document (2) above are also relevant: 
 

"A proposal for development should cover an assessment against legal duties 
and obligations including the public sector equality duty and the duty to have 
regard to the need to reduce inequalities. 
 
The pre-consultation business case will vary, however they should outline 
how the proposed service changes will promote equality, tackle health 
inequalities and demonstrate how the commissioners have met public sector 
equality duty."  

 
Here are two extracts from document (3) above:  
 

"NHS England has developed 10 principles of participation based on a review 
of research, best practice reports and the views of stakeholders.  

Page 40



 
1. Reach out to people rather than expecting them to come to you and 

ask them how they want to be involved, avoiding assumptions.  
2. Promote equality and diversity and encourage and respect different 

beliefs and opinions. 
3. Proactively seek participation from people who experience health 

inequalities and poor health outcomes.  
4. Value people’s lived experience and use all the strengths and talents 

that people bring to the table, working towards shared goals and 
aiming for constructive and productive conversations.  

5. Provide clear and easy to understand information and seek to facilitate 
involvement by all, recognising that everyone has different needs. This 
includes working with advocacy services and other partners where 
necessary.  

6. Take time to plan and budget for participation and start involving 
people as early as possible.  

7. Be open, honest and transparent in the way you work; tell people 
about the evidence base for decisions, and be clear about resource 
limitations and other relevant constraints. Where information has to be 
kept confidential, explain why.  

8. Invest in partnerships, have an ongoing dialogue and avoid tokenism; 
provide information, support, training and the right kind of leadership 
so everyone can work, learn and improve together.  

9. Review experience (positive and negative) and learn from it to 
continuously improve how people are involved.  

10. Recognise, record and celebrate people’s contributions and give 
feedback on the results of involvement; show people how they are 
valued."  

 
"CCGs and NHS England should be able to demonstrate how they have tried 
to ensure:  

 Participation activity reaches diverse communities and groups with 
distinct health needs and those who experience difficulties accessing 
health services, including inclusion health groups.  

 People who have characteristics that are protected under the Equality 
Act 2010 are involved.  

 People who lack capacity are protected and empowered and that the 
provisions of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 are met."  

 
Conclusion
 
The Committee’s work programme for the coming year is set out above.  The 
Committee is invited to review, consider and comment on the work programme and 
highlight for discussion any additional scrutiny activity which could be included for 
consideration in the work programme. 
 
Background Papers - No background papers within Section 100D of the Local 
Government Act 1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, who can be 
contacted on 01522 553607 or by e-mail at Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 41

mailto:Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX A 
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE 
AT-A-GLANCE WORK PROGRAMME 

 
 

2017 2018 2019 

KEY 

 = Substantive Item Considered 

ca = Chairman's Announcement 

 = Planned Substantive Item 
 

1
4

 J
u

n
e
 

1
9

 J
u

ly
 

1
3

 S
e

p
t 

1
1

 O
c
t  

8
 N

o
v
 

1
3

 D
e

c
 

1
7

 J
a

n
 

2
1

 F
e

b
 

2
1

 M
a

r 

1
8

 A
p

r 

1
6

 M
a

y
 

1
3

 J
u

n
e
 

1
1

 J
u

ly
 

1
2

 S
e

p
t 

1
7

 O
c
t 

1
4

 N
o

v
 

1
2

 D
e

c
 

2
3

 J
a

n
 

2
0

 F
e

b
 

2
0

 M
a

r 

Meeting Length - Minutes 170 225 185 170 205 230 276 280 270 230 244 233 188 280 160 275     

Cancer Care                     

 General Provision                     

 Head and Neck Cancers              ca       

Clinical Commissioning Groups                     
 Annual Assessment              ca       

 Lincolnshire East                     

 Lincolnshire West                     

 South Lincolnshire                     

 South West Lincolnshire                     

Community Maternity Hubs        ca             

Community Pain Management            ca         

Dental Services         ca        ca ca   

GPs and Primary Care:                      
Extended GP Opening Hours        ca   ca    ca      
GP Recruitment   ca  ca                
Lincoln GP Surgeries   ca  ca                 
Lincoln Walk-in Centre   ca                  
Louth GP Surgeries   ca ca                  
Out of Hours Service              ca       
Sleaford Medical Group         ca            
Spalding GP Provision              ca       
Grantham Minor Injuries Service            ca  ca       

Health and Wellbeing Board:                     
 Annual Report            ca         
 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy                     
 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment                     

Health Scrutiny Committee Role                     

Healthwatch Lincolnshire            ca  ca  ca      

Lincolnshire Community 
Health Services NHS Trust  

                 
   

 Care Quality Commission             ca  ca      

Learning Disability Specialist Care                     

Lincolnshire Sustainability 
and Transformation 
Partnership 

                 

   

General / Acute Services Review           ca  ca        
GP Forward View                     
Integrated Community Care                     
Integrated Neighbourhood Working                     
Mental Health                ca     
NHS Long Term Plan                ca     
Operational Efficiency                     
Urgent and Emergency Care                     

Lincolnshire Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust: 

                 
   

 General Update / CQC                  ca   
 Psychiatric Clinical Decisions Unit       ca              

Lincolnshire Reablement & Assessment Service                 ca    

Louth County Hospital              ca   ca    

Page 42



 
2017 2018 2019 

KEY 

 = Substantive Item Considered 

ca = Chairman's Announcement 

 = Planned Substantive Item 
 

1
4

 J
u

n
e
 

1
9

 J
u

ly
 

1
3

 S
e

p
t 

1
1

 O
c
t  

8
 N

o
v
 

1
3

 D
e

c
 

1
7

 J
a

n
 

2
1

 F
e

b
 

2
1

 M
a

r 

1
8

 A
p

r 

1
6

 M
a

y
 

1
3

 J
u

n
e
 

1
1

 J
u

ly
 

1
2

 S
e

p
t 

1
7

 O
c
t 

1
4

 N
o

v
 

1
2

 D
e

c
 

2
3

 J
a

n
 

2
0

 F
e

b
 

2
0

 M
a

r 

Northern Lincolnshire and Goole 
NHS Foundation Trust 

  ca            ca   ca   

North West Anglia NHS Foundation 
Trust 

               ca     

Organisational 
Developments: 

                 
   

CCG Joint Working Arrangements              ca    ca   
Integrated Care Provider Contract              ca       
National Centre for Rural Care             ca     ca   
NHSE and NHSI Joint Working            ca      ca   
Lincoln Medical School   ca              ca    

Patient Transport:                     

Ambulance Commissioning                     
East Midlands Ambulance Service     ca      ca ca ca   ca ca    
Non-Emergency Patient Transport       ca      ca  ca ca     
Sleaford Joint Ambulance & Fire Station           ca  ca        

Public Health:                     

Child Obesity             ca        
Director of Public Health Report                     
Immunisation                     

Influenza Vaccination Programme                 ca    

Pharmacy   ca                  

Renal Dialysis Services                     

Quality Accounts                     

United Lincolnshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust:  

                 
   

A&E Funding  ca                   
Introduction                     
Care Quality Commission             ca ca        
Children/Young People Services                 ca    
Financial Special Measures   ca                  
Grantham A&E        ca      ca ca ca     
Orthopaedics and Trauma            ca  ca       
Stroke Services                  ca   

Winter Resilience     ca  ca ca             

 
 
 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire meeting held on 23 January 2019
	4 Chairman's Announcements
	5 Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership: Engagement and the NHS Long Term Plan
	7 Grantham Accident and Emergency Department - Referral to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care
	8 Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire - Work Programme

